Generational Wealth in the U.S. Hispanic Market: Preparing for 2029 and Beyond

Executive Summary

The United States Hispanic population is poised to play a transformative role in the nation's generational wealth dynamics over the coming decade. With a **youthful and rapidly growing demographic**, U.S. Hispanics are becoming a larger share of the workforce and consumer base each yearpewresearch.org. At the same time, **educational attainment among Hispanics has been rising**, opening new pathways to higher incomes and wealth-building, even as gaps remain relative to other groups. Meanwhile, **digital innovation and emerging technologies** – from fintech tools to artificial intelligence – are enabling greater financial inclusion and entrepreneurial opportunity in Hispanic communities, helping overcome historical barriers to wealth accumulation.

This white paper examines three critical dimensions of generational wealth in the U.S. Hispanic market – **Consumer Age**, **Education**, and **Emerging Technology** – with an eye toward 2029 and beyond. Key findings indicate that business leaders must prepare for a **demographic shift** as the predominantly young Latino population ages into prime earning years, inheriting influence in the economy as older cohorts retire. **Intergenerational wealth transfer trends** reveal stark disparities: white households have historically enjoyed far greater inherited wealth than Hispanic households, but rising Hispanic homeownership and income gains suggest the seeds of future generational wealth are being planted. In **education**, Hispanics are making strides in high school and college completion, yet still face barriers such as affordability, student debt, and lower financial literacy that limit wealth-building potential <u>finrafoundation.org</u>. The rapid **adoption of technology** in Hispanic communities – evidenced by the highest fintech usage rates of any racial/ethnic group and enthusiastic uptake of digital tools – is emerging as a catalyst for financial inclusion and entrepreneurship.

Forward-looking analysis: By January 1, 2029, the converging forces of a youthful population, educational progress, and technology-driven inclusion are expected to substantially elevate the economic clout of U.S. Hispanics. Business leaders should anticipate that Hispanic Americans will constitute an even larger share of the nation's talent pool, consumer demand, and wealth holders. To prepare, companies and policymakers must invest in culturally responsive financial education, tailor products to bilingual and mobile-first preferences, support Latino entrepreneurship, and address structural gaps (such as unequal access to capital or intergenerational assets). By doing so, they can both tap into and facilitate the growth of generational wealth in this community – a growth that promises to benefit not only Hispanic families but the broader American economy.

Key Findings

- Youthful Demographics Driving Change: The Hispanic population is dramatically younger than the non-Hispanic white population. The most common age among U.S. Hispanics is just 11, compared to 58 for white Americanspewresearch.org. This foreshadows a massive generational turnover by the 2030s as young Latinos enter the workforce while older non-Hispanic whites retire. By 2024, Hispanics will form 1 in 5 U.S. workers, and their labor force participation (~65.6%) is among the highest of any group a trend that will accelerate generational wealth formation as Latino workers contribute a growing share of national income.
- Generational Wealth Gaps and Inheritance: Despite recent gains, Hispanic households today hold significantly less wealth than white households, reflecting historical disparities. In 2021, the median Hispanic household net worth was about \$48,700 only 19% of the median white household's \$250,400. These wealth gaps are rooted in factors like a younger age profile and less inherited wealth: white individuals have been over four times more likely to receive an inheritance than Latino individuals (9% vs 2.1%), with whites inheriting over six times the amount Hispanics do on average. However, Hispanic wealth is on an upswing (median net worth up 42% from 2019 to 2021), and between 2020 and 2040, 70% of new U.S. homeowners are projected to be Hispanic, indicating that younger Latino families are starting to build assets that can be passed down.
- Educational Attainment Rising, but Lags Remain: Educational progress among Hispanics has been significant and is critical to future wealth. High school completion rates for young Hispanics jumped from 52% in 1996 to 88% in 2022, and Hispanic college enrollment doubled from 1.2 million in 2005 to 2.4 million in 2021. Latinos now make up 20% of U.S. college students. Yet, only 14.5% of Hispanic adults have a bachelor's degree (versus 26% of whites), and Hispanics have the lowest college completion rate of any major group. Barriers such as high college costs, the need to support family, and student debt burden contribute to this gapncrc.org. Nearly 40% of Latino student borrowers have defaulted on loans over the past two decades, compared to 29% of white borrowersjbhe.com a burden that erodes the ability to accumulate wealth early in their careers.
- Financial Literacy and Inclusion Gaps: Many Hispanic Americans face financial literacy and inclusion challenges that impede wealth-building. Only 24% of Hispanic adults demonstrated high financial literacy (answering 4 out of 5 basic financial questions correctly) in a 2021 national survey, down from 31% in 2009finrafoundation.org. Hispanic households are also more likely to be unbanked or underbanked; for example, even among moderate-income families (\$30k–50k), 8.4% of Hispanic households lack a bank account versus just 1.7% of white households. These gaps underscore the need for culturally tailored financial education and services. Encouragingly, community and nonprofit programs including Hispanic-serving

institutions and financial empowerment initiatives – are increasingly focusing on improving financial literacy and trust in financial systems.

- Technology as a Wealth Enabler: The Hispanic community has embraced digital technology at leading rates, which is reshaping access to financial tools and entrepreneurial opportunities. About 92% of U.S. Latinos use fintech services the highest adoption rate of any racial/ethnic group (compared to 74% of whites). This includes widespread use of mobile banking, digital wallets, and online investment platforms that lower barriers to saving and investing. High mobile connectivity is a factor: 90% of Hispanics have broadband internet access when counting smartphone access, and 25% of Hispanic adults are "smartphone-only" internet users (relying on mobile data without home broadband, vs 12% of whites). This mobile-first usage pattern has driven fintech innovation from bilingual banking apps to lending platforms serving ITIN holders that can help bridge gaps in traditional financial access.
- Entrepreneurship and Innovation: Hispanic Americans are starting businesses at an unparalleled pace, leveraging technology and younger generational energy. Latinos launch 36% of new businesses in the U.S. (nearly double their population share)mckinsey.com, making them the most entrepreneurial demographic. Many of these new ventures are adopting digital tools early: for instance, 14% of Latino-owned "scaled" businesses (midsized firms) already use AI technologies, double the rate of their white-owned counterparts. Young Hispanics are also power users of emerging tech recent data show Latino youth outpace white youth in using AI for learning and creativity (e.g. 54% of Latino youth have used AI to gather information, vs 41% of white youth). This generational digital fluency suggests that Hispanic-owned businesses and workers could be at the forefront of innovation in fields like fintech, e-commerce, and the digital economy. Supporting these trends (through mentorship, access to venture capital, and technology training) will be key to unlocking wealth creation in the next decade.
- Regional Concentrations and Shifting Influence: Geographically, the Hispanic market's influence is expanding from traditional hubs into new regions, which will impact regional economies and industries. States like California, Texas, Florida, and New York have the largest Latino economies all growing faster than their non-Latino state counterparts. At the same time, the fastest percentage growth of Hispanic populations since 2010 has occurred in states like North Dakota, South Dakota, and Montana (albeit from smaller bases) pewresearch.org, as well as throughout the Southeast. This means more regions will see Hispanics driving labor force growth, homeownership demand, and consumer spending. Already, Hispanic purchasing power nationwide is estimated at \$3.8 trillion as of 2022. Business leaders will need region-specific strategies from marketing approaches to talent recruitment to engage Hispanic communities whose cultural nuances and needs may vary by geography (e.g. established communities in the Southwest vs. emerging communities in the Midwest).

In sum, by 2029 the U.S. Hispanic cohort will be entering a new phase: a large, young, better-educated, and tech-empowered generation of Latinos stepping onto the center stage of the U.S. economy. Companies that understand and invest in this group's development – through inclusive products, services, and opportunities – stand to gain a competitive edge. Likewise, addressing structural challenges (educational barriers, financial access, and wealth gaps) now will pay dividends by fueling a more prosperous and equitable future, as Hispanic families build and transfer wealth across generations.

Table of Contents

- 1. Consumer Age: Demographics and Generational Shifts
 - 1.1. Youthful Age Structure and Population Growth
 - 1.2. Workforce Participation and Earning Power by Generation
 - 1.3. Generational Wealth Transfer Trends and Implications
 - 1.4. Spending Behaviors and Regional Market Influence
- 2. Education: Pathway to Economic Mobility
 - 2.1. Trends in Educational Attainment among U.S. Hispanics
 - 2.2. Barriers in Higher Education and Progress Made
 - 2.3. Financial Literacy Gaps and Student Debt Impact
 - 2.4. Bilingual & Culturally Responsive Education Initiatives
- 3. Emerging Technology: Catalyzing Wealth-Building
 - 3.1. Digital Inclusion and Fintech Adoption in Hispanic Communities
 - 3.2. Mobile-First Banking and Access to Financial Tools
 - 3.3. Al, Blockchain, and the Future of Hispanic Entrepreneurship
 - 3.4. Generational Digital Fluency and Tech Adoption Patterns
- 4. **Conclusion and Recommendations**: Preparing for 2029 Strategies for Business Leaders
- 5. Appendices
 - A. Data Tables and Charts
 - B. Glossary of Terms

1. Consumer Age: Demographics and Generational Shifts

1.1 Youthful Age Structure and Population Growth

The age demographics of the U.S. Hispanic population are unique and profoundly affect generational wealth prospects. Latinos are **among the youngest populations** of any major racial or ethnic group in Americapewresearch.org. The median age of U.S. Hispanics is approximately 30–31 (as of 2019), compared to about 44–45 for non-Hispanic whitespewresearch.org. Perhaps even more striking is the difference in **modal age** (the single most common age): for Hispanics, the most common age is only **11 years old**, whereas for white Americans it is **58 years old**pewresearch.org. This dramatic age gap reflects higher birth rates and a larger youth cohort among Hispanics, as well as the aging of the white Baby Boomer generation.

Figure 1. Age distribution by race/ethnicity (2018): The Hispanic population skews much younger than the white population, with the most common age for Hispanics (11 years) far lower than for whites (58 years) pewresearch.org. The chart shows the number of people of each age; note the large concentration of white Americans in older age brackets (peaking at age 58) versus the concentration of Hispanic Americans in childhood and young adulthood.

This youthful age structure means that Hispanics will account for a growing share of new entrants into the U.S. workforce and consumer market in the coming years. Between 2010 and 2019 alone, the Hispanic share of the total U.S. population rose from 16% to 18%pewresearch.org, and Hispanics contributed over half (52%) of all U.S. population growth in that periodpewresearch.org. As of 2021, there were about 62.5 million Latinos in the United States (roughly 19% of the population), and projections show continued growth. The U.S. Census Bureau forecasts that by 2060, nearly 28% of Americans may identify as Hispanicmckinsey.com, underlining the long-term demographic shift.

Importantly, Hispanic population growth today is driven less by immigration and more by U.S. births. About **three-quarters of U.S. Hispanics under 18 were born in the United States** (many second- or third-generation). The number of Latino children born in the U.S. far exceeds the number of new immigrants in recent years. This native-born young generation is poised to benefit from American educational institutions and labor markets from the start of their lives, which could translate into higher earnings potential and wealth accumulation as they come of age.

From a generational wealth perspective, the youth of the Latino population presents both **opportunities and challenges**. On one hand, a larger proportion of Hispanics are in their prime years for **human capital investment** (education, skills training) and early career growth. These younger workers can potentially enjoy many decades of earnings, savings, and compound investment returns ahead of them – the raw ingredients for building wealth over a lifetime. Moreover, as they form households, their demands for housing, financial services, and consumer goods will shape markets and create business opportunities. By 2029, a significant wave of Latino Gen Z and Millennials will be entering mid-career, boosting their purchasing power and financial influence.

On the other hand, the fact that relatively few Hispanics today are in older, wealth-holding age brackets implies a **current generational wealth gap**. Older age cohorts (50s, 60s, 70s)

typically hold the majority of a society's wealth due to decades of accumulation. Since the non-Hispanic white population is older, it currently controls a disproportionate share of assets. The median wealth of white households is more than five times that of Hispanic households, in part because many white households have had more time (and often intergenerational head-starts) to accrue wealth. As the Hispanic population ages into these later-life stages over the next few decades, one critical question is **whether they will be able to accumulate and retain wealth at comparable levels**. The data on homeownership and savings (discussed later) suggest that with the right conditions, Hispanic families can make significant strides in wealth accumulation during their prime working years.

1.2 Workforce Participation and Earning Power by Generation

The youthful profile of Hispanics translates into a growing presence in the workforce. In fact, Hispanics have among the **highest labor force participation rates** of any group – about **65.6%** as of 2021 – reflecting that a large share are of working age and actively employed or seeking work. By 2024, it is estimated that **1 in 5 U.S. workers will be Latino**, marking an all-time high. This is a major demographic milestone: it means the Hispanic community will constitute 20% of the national labor pool, contributing to productivity and economic growth in all sectors from service and construction to professional fields.

Looking toward 2029, as more Baby Boomers retire (a cohort in which whites predominate) and more young Latinos finish school and start careers, Latinos' share of the labor force will further expand. The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics projects that **Latinos will account for about 78% of net new workers between 2020 and 2030** (this statistic comes from combining BLS and Census projections), which is a staggering concentration of growth. In other words, without Hispanic workers, the overall U.S. workforce would barely grow at all in that period. This implies that many industries – from manufacturing to healthcare – will become increasingly dependent on Hispanic talent to meet their staffing needs and to drive innovation and productivity.

For business leaders, a key implication is that Latino workers and consumers will fuel economic expansion in the latter 2020s. Already, the total economic output of U.S. Latinos reached \$3.6 trillion in 2022, growing faster than the GDP of most countries. If U.S. Latinos were a standalone economy, they would be the 5th largest in the world in GDP – and are on track to become the 4th largest by 2029 at an estimated \$5.7 trillion. This growth is underpinned by strong labor force participation and entrepreneurship (discussed in Section 3). It also reflects rising incomes: Latino median household income has been increasing (reaching about \$55,000 in recent estimates), and aggregate Latino household income grew to \$2.83 trillion in 2022, with an average growth of 4.8% per year from 2017–2022 – faster than the rest of the population.

However, to convert workforce participation into **generational wealth**, it is not only quantity of work that matters but also the quality of jobs and wage levels. Currently, a disproportionate number of Hispanic workers are in lower-paying occupations or sectors with limited benefits (e.g. agriculture, hospitality, entry-level service roles). The historical wage gap is evident – for example, Hispanic women earn on average **55 cents for every dollar earned by white men**.

and overall Hispanic median earnings lag behind white and Asian counterparts. Part of this gap is due to younger age (younger workers earn less on average), but part is due to educational differences and occupational segregation. Over time, as more Hispanics gain higher education and move into professional careers, we would expect income convergence to improve. Indeed, second-generation Latinos (U.S.-born children of immigrants) tend to have higher incomes and employment in higher-skilled jobs than their parents, indicating progress.

By 2029, a larger share of the Hispanic workforce will likely be college-educated and in knowledge-economy roles than today, given current educational trends. This could translate into higher median incomes for Hispanic households, thus more disposable income to save and invest. Additionally, younger Latinos show a strong penchant for **entrepreneurship** – which can be a pathway to wealth creation if businesses are successful (Section 3.4 will explore this further). Latinos already start new businesses at a faster rate than any group, comprising 36% of new entrepreneurs in 2023mckinsey.com. If even a fraction of these ventures scale up or accumulate value (e.g., through business equity, property, etc.), they will contribute to the community's asset base.

1.3 Generational Wealth Transfer Trends and Implications

One of the defining factors of generational wealth is inheritance – the passing of assets from older to younger generations. Here, the Hispanic community faces a significant historical disadvantage. Because Hispanic Americans in previous generations (especially first-generation immigrants) generally had lower incomes and fewer assets, today's young Latinos are much less likely to receive inheritances or family financial transfers compared to their white peers. Research shows that across all ages, only about 2.1% of Latinos have received an inheritance, versus about 9% of non-Hispanic whites. Moreover, the average amount inherited by white households is over six times greater than that inherited by Latino households.

This inheritance gap is a direct impediment to generational wealth building. It means many young Hispanic adults start their financial lives with little or no family wealth cushion – no property passed down, no significant savings gifts for down payments, etc. By contrast, a substantial share of white young adults benefit from even modest inheritances or intrafamily transfers (for example, help with college tuition or a first home purchase) that can accelerate their wealth accumulation. The net effect is that **wealth inequality gets reproduced across generations**: past inequities lead to a smaller head-start for the next generation of Hispanic families.

However, there are signs this pattern could slowly change as the Hispanic middle class grows. Hispanic homeownership is a key area to watch. Homes are often the largest asset passed to the next generation. Currently, about **49.7% of Hispanic American households own their home** (as of Q1 2023), which is **below the 66% national rate and far below the 74.4% rate for non-Hispanic whites**. But Hispanic homeownership has been **rising steadily** – over 2.3 million Hispanic households became homeowners between 2014 and 2022. In 2022 alone, a net increase of 349,000 Hispanic homeowner households was recorded, the largest in over a

decade. Notably, Latinos are buying homes at younger ages on average: over 70% of Latinos who obtained a mortgage in 2021 were under age 45, higher than the rate for whites. This means many Hispanic families are laying the foundation for generational wealth (in the form of home equity) earlier in their life cycle, which can appreciate and later be passed to children. Indeed, it's projected that 70% of new homeowners from 2020 to 2040 will be Hispanic, a statistic that underscores how central Latinos will be to the housing market and wealth-building through real estate.

Another positive trend is the growth of the Hispanic middle class and upward income mobility among the U.S.-born second generation. Second-generation Latino Americans (the children of immigrants) typically achieve higher education and incomes than the first generation. A study highlighted in the Los Angeles Times noted that **second-generation Latinos are faring better than their parents economically**, contributing to an expansion of the Hispanic middle class. More Hispanic families reaching middle-class status means more will have retirement savings, investments, and possibly businesses or properties to bequeath. Already, **more Hispanic families are reaching the middle class** and are managing to remain there, although they still face more volatility than whites in staying middle class. By 2029, we will have a larger cohort of middle-aged, second-generation Latinos who have accumulated assets – a critical inflection point for generational wealth transfer as they in turn plan for their children's futures.

It's important to temper expectations: **the racial wealth gap is unlikely to close quickly** because wealth compounds over time and across generations. Even with equal incomes, a family that started with a nest egg (from previous generations) will generally remain ahead of one that started from zero. That said, the coming decade can lay important groundwork. If Hispanic families prioritize savings, homeownership, and investing when possible – and if public policy and financial institutions support these goals through equitable access to credit, first-time homebuyer programs, etc. – then **the wealth passed to the next generation of Latinos can be significantly larger** than what the current generation received. In other words, *the 2030s could witness the first substantial wave of intergenerational wealth transfer within many Hispanic families*, as those who bought homes in the 2010s–2020s see their children come of age.

Conversely, if systemic barriers (like lending discrimination, wage disparities, or lack of financial advice) are not addressed, there's a risk that even as Hispanics earn more, they might not convert income into lasting wealth at the same rate. Business leaders have a role here: by ensuring diversity in hiring and pay equity, by offering robust retirement plans to Hispanic employees, and by marketing financial products (insurance, investment accounts, estate planning services) appropriately to Hispanic customers, they can help bolster the community's wealth-building capacity. There is a large untapped market in providing culturally attuned financial planning to first-generation wealth builders in the Latino community – helping families navigate estate planning (e.g., writing wills – notable since many Hispanics lack wills), life insurance, and college savings for their kids, which all facilitate smoother wealth transmission.

1.4 Spending Behaviors and Regional Market Influence

Generational wealth is not only about assets and savings; it's also influenced by spending and consumption patterns, which determine how much income can be diverted to wealth-building. Hispanic consumer behavior has some distinctive aspects rooted in cultural values and family structure. For instance, Hispanic households on average are slightly larger (more children per family) and more likely to be multi-generational (with grandparents or extended family) than non-Hispanic white householdspewresearch.org. This can translate into greater expenditures on items like groceries, children's clothing, and education, while possibly pooling resources on housing. Surveys have found that securing their family's future is a top financial objective for nearly half of Latino households, indicating a strong motivation to invest in home and education for children – which are indeed forms of building future wealth.

Despite lower average incomes, **Hispanic consumer spending power is large and fast-growing** due to population growth and rising incomes. Hispanic households collectively spent an estimated **\$1.5 trillion+ in 2020**, and this figure has continued to increase. In terms of **purchasing power (after-tax income)**, Latinos wield about **\$3.78 trillion as of 2022**. This reflects not just basic needs but also significant discretionary spending in categories like automotive, telecommunications, and entertainment. Younger Latino consumers, in particular, are trendsetters in areas like mobile technology adoption, streaming media, and food/dining preferences, influencing mainstream market offerings. Companies across sectors – from consumer goods to financial services – are taking note that catering to Latino preferences is no longer optional but essential for growth. Cultural nuances (such as bilingual marketing, family-centric branding, and community engagement) often resonate with Hispanic consumers and can drive loyalty.

Regional variations in Hispanic influence are important. Traditionally, Hispanic buying power has been concentrated in states like California, Texas, Florida, New York, and Illinois – home to large Latino populations. These remain critical markets: for example, California's Latino population (15+ million) heavily shapes the state's housing, retail, and service industries, and businesses in Texas know that Latinos (40% of the state's residents) form the backbone of their consumer base in cities like Houston, Dallas, and San Antonio. But more recently, the fastest Hispanic population growth has occurred in the South and Midwestpewresearch.org. States such as Georgia, North Carolina, and Tennessee have seen surges in their Hispanic communities, who are contributing to local economies and in some cases revitalizing small towns with new businesses and labor force growth.

It's also worth noting the **regional differences in economic outcomes among Hispanics**. Hispanic median income and wealth can vary by state and by national origin group. For example, Hispanic households in the Northeast and certain parts of the West tend to have higher incomes than those in the South, partly reflecting differences in cost of living and industry employment. Cuban American households in Florida or Asian-origin Latinos (e.g., from South America) might have different spending and saving habits than Mexican American households in the Southwest. Understanding these sub-market profiles is important for tailoring strategies — a "one size fits all" approach to Hispanic consumers or employees misses opportunities. A report by the Latino Donor Collaborative highlighted that the **10 largest Latino state economies (including CA, TX, FL, NJ, etc.) are all growing faster in terms of Latino GDP**

than their non-Latino counterparts in those states, suggesting that in states with big Hispanic populations, Latinos are driving a disproportionate share of economic growth.

From a generational wealth lens, where people live can influence the cost of living and ability to save. Many Hispanics live in high-cost metro areas (Los Angeles, New York, Miami) which can strain budgets but also often come with higher wages. Others in lower-cost areas might find it easier to buy property. One challenge in some fast-growing areas (like parts of the South) is the relative lack of Hispanic-oriented financial services or language-accessible resources, which underscores the need for banks and advisors to expand culturally competent services in those regions.

Finally, **remittances** are a notable spending factor for many first-generation Hispanics. A portion of income earned by Hispanic immigrants is often sent to family in their country of origin. While remittances are a valuable support for relatives abroad and strengthen transnational ties, they do represent money not being invested or spent domestically by the sender. As newer generations are more removed from the immigrant experience, the share of income sent abroad may decline, potentially keeping more wealth within U.S. Hispanic households.

In conclusion of this section, the **demographic and consumer profile of U.S. Hispanics** is one of youthful growth, rising workforce impact, and evolving financial behavior. As we approach 2029, current trends suggest Hispanic Americans will take on an even greater role as earners, spenders, and savers. This sets the stage for the next sections: how **education** is enhancing their economic prospects, and how **technology** is unlocking new avenues for wealth-building. By nurturing the human capital and leveraging digital tools, the young Latino population can translate their demographic potential into lasting generational wealth.

2. Education: Pathway to Economic Mobility

Education has long been recognized as one of the most powerful levers for economic mobility and wealth-building. For the U.S. Hispanic community, education represents both **a story of significant progress** and **ongoing challenges**. Improvements in educational attainment over the past few decades have begun to pay dividends in higher earnings and better jobs for many Hispanics. However, gaps in completion rates, advanced degrees, and educational debt burdens continue to affect the community's ability to accumulate wealth at the same pace as some other groups. In this section, we examine trends in Hispanic education and their implications for generational wealth, including the role of culturally responsive education and financial literacy.

2.1 Trends in Educational Attainment among U.S. Hispanics

Over the last 20 years, **educational attainment among Hispanics has risen dramatically**, marking one of the community's most important achievements. High school graduation rates have increased and college enrollment has more than doubled. This bodes well for future

earning potential and wealth creation, as higher education correlates strongly with higher lifetime income and access to jobs with benefits (like retirement plans).

Some key milestones and data points:

- High School Completion: In 1996, barely half (52%) of Latino 25- to 29-year-olds had finished high school. Fast forward to 2022, and about 88% of Latinos in that age range are high school graduates. This rapid improvement closed much of the gap with other groups (for context, the national high school completion rate is around 93%). The narrowing of the high school gap means far more young Hispanics are eligible for college and skilled employment than in the past.
- College Enrollment: Hispanic college enrollment has surged. In 2000, only 1.5 million Hispanics were enrolled in higher education; by 2019 it reached 3.8 million. Even more recent data shows Hispanic undergraduate enrollment roughly doubled from 1.2 million in 2005 to 2.4 million in 2021. As of 2021, Hispanic students make up 20% of all college students in the U.S. (up from 14% in 2010), reflecting both population growth and increased college-going rates. Notably, Hispanic women enroll in college at higher rates than Hispanic men, mirroring a broader gender trend in higher education this could influence future household income patterns and even marriage trends within the community.
- Degree Attainment: While enrollments have increased, there is still a lag in degree completion. Only about 22% of Latino adults (25 and older) had attained an associate degree or higher as of 2021, and 14.5% had a bachelor's degree or higher. This is up from around 10% with bachelor's degrees in 2000, so progress is evident, but it remains the lowest rate among major racial/ethnic groups (for comparison, 26.1% of white adults, 17.1% of Black adults, and 32.6% of Asian adults have a bachelor's or higher). The gap is especially pronounced at the postgraduate level (master's, professional, doctoral degrees) where Hispanics are underrepresented, which can limit access to the highest-paying professions.
- STEM and Advanced Fields: Encouragingly, there has been significant growth in Latinos earning degrees in fields like engineering, technology, and medicine in recent years critical for competing in a tech-driven economy. For example, the number of Latinos receiving computer science degrees nearly tripled (up 180%) between 2011 and 2022. Also, Latinos awarded degrees in STEM fields more than doubled (+102% from 2013 to 2022). These gains suggest a pipeline of Hispanic professionals entering lucrative fields that traditionally have had high wealth-building potential (due to high salaries and stock compensation in tech, etc.). The caveat: Latinos still comprise a smaller share of total STEM degree-holders than their population share, indicating room for further growth.
- Educational Attainment by Generation: U.S.-born Hispanics tend to have higher education levels than immigrant Hispanics. In 2017, 20% of U.S.-born Latinos ages 25+

had at least a bachelor's degree, compared to 12% of foreign-born Latinos. Recent immigrants, however, often are arriving with more education than earlier waves – about 26% of Latinos who immigrated in recent years (25+ age) had a college degree. This "brain gain" from certain countries (e.g., professionals from Latin America) adds to the educated cohort. As the second and third generation Latinos now move through the education system, we expect overall Hispanic education stats to keep improving because those U.S.-born generations have had more educational opportunities.

• High School to College Transition: By 2022, about 62% of Latino high school graduates were enrolling in college immediately (two-year or four-year), which is only slightly below the rate for white high school grads. However, Latinos are more likely to start at community colleges: roughly half of Hispanic college students begin at a two-year institution. Community colleges provide accessible, affordable education, but the transfer rate to four-year programs is low – only 17% of Latinos who intend to transfer actually do so within 7 years. This dynamic results in many Latinos not completing bachelor's degrees even if they have college credits, which can limit their earnings relative to those with four-year degrees.

Figure 2. Bachelor's Degree Attainment by Race/Ethnicity (2022): The percentage of adults age 25+ with at least a bachelor's degree. Hispanics (14.5%) lag behind whites (26.1%) and Asians (32.6%), but are slightly above Black adults (17.1%) in this measure. Increasing Latino college completion is key to closing income and wealth gaps.

The consequences of these educational trends for generational wealth are significant. **Higher education is a strong predictor of higher earnings** over a lifetime, and thus greater capacity to save, invest, and purchase assets like homes. The median weekly earnings of workers with a bachelor's degree are roughly 65% higher than those with only a high school diploma (per BLS data). Therefore, as more Hispanics obtain college degrees, the community's average income and wealth should rise. A college degree also often confers more stability (lower unemployment rates) and access to employer-based retirement plans and health insurance, which contribute to financial security.

Conversely, the fact that the majority of Hispanic adults still do not have a postsecondary credential means a large segment is confined to lower-wage jobs, making it hard to accumulate wealth. For example, many of the essential but low-paying jobs (in food service, cleaning, agriculture) are done by those with lower education; these jobs rarely offer 401(k)s or appreciable income to invest. That has an obvious effect on wealth-building – living paycheck to paycheck prevents saving for the future.

The good news is that **each successive generation of Hispanics is more educated than the last**, so we have an upward trajectory. By 2029, a sizable wave of Hispanic Millennials and Gen Z with college and graduate degrees will be in the workforce, likely earning at levels closer to national averages (or above, in fields like healthcare, engineering, etc.). We may also see more Hispanics in leadership positions in business and government as their education credentials

catch up, which could further influence policies and practices to be more inclusive of wealth-building opportunities.

2.2 Barriers in Higher Education and Progress Made

Despite clear gains, **barriers persist** for Hispanics in reaching higher education and completing degrees. Understanding these challenges is crucial for addressing them, as they directly impact economic outcomes and wealth accumulation.

Financial Barriers: The cost of college is a major hurdle. Hispanic students are disproportionately from lower-income families and often the first generation to attend college, making the cost of tuition, fees, and living expenses a critical factor. Many Latino students choose community college or part-time enrollment to save money, but this can extend time to degree or result in no degree at all. A Pew Research survey found that 4 in 10 Latino young adults who did not complete college cited financial pressure as a primary reason (needing to support family, or not wanting to incur debt)ncrc.org. Additionally, Latinos are less likely than whites to take out student loans – sometimes averse to debt – but those who do take loans often struggle with repayment (as detailed in 2.3).

Academic Preparation and Guidance: Some Hispanic students attend under-resourced K-12 schools that don't offer a strong college preparatory curriculum. As a result, they may arrive at college needing remedial courses, which delay progress. Furthermore, as **the least likely group to attend preschool** (only ~52% of Latino children attend preschool vs 61% national average), many Hispanic kids start kindergarten behind in literacy, which can have cascading effects. Overcoming these early education gaps requires targeted support (e.g., early childhood programs, tutoring, mentoring in high school). Language barriers can also play a role for immigrant students or those in homes where English isn't spoken; however, research shows that dual-language (bilingual) education can actually boost achievement (more on this in 2.4).

Community College "Stop-Outs": As noted, heavy reliance on community colleges leads to lower BA completion. Many Latinos "stop out" (interrupt studies) due to work or family obligations. Only 17% of Latino community college students in one study transferred to a four-year university within 7 years. Improving transfer pathways, providing navigation support, and offering flexible scheduling (night classes, etc.) are important to improve these outcomes. Hispanic-Serving Institutions (HSIs) – colleges where ≥25% of students are Hispanic – have been pivotal in awarding degrees to Latinos and often excel at supporting those who transfer from community colleges.

Cultural and Family Factors: Hispanic culture places a strong value on family responsibilities, which can sometimes conflict with educational pursuits. Some Latino youths feel obliged to enter the workforce early to contribute to household income, or to stay close to home rather than attend college far away. This can limit their college choices or lead to dropping out when family needs (like childcare for siblings or caring for elders) arise. Initiatives that provide childcare on campus, or financial support to families, can help mitigate this. On the positive side, close-knit families can also be a source of support and motivation for students who do enroll.

Representation and Campus Climate: A more subtle barrier is the lack of representation of Latinos among faculty and in curriculum. Being often first-generation college students, many Latinos don't see professors or academic leaders who look like them, which can affect their sense of belonging or mentorship opportunities. Progress is being made as colleges hire more diverse faculty and create cultural centers, but there is room to grow. Programs that celebrate Hispanic heritage and provide mentorship (like UnidosUS's mentorship programs or Latinx student organizations) help students persist to graduation.

Despite these barriers, there are notable **areas of progress**:

- High School Achievement: The narrowing of the high school graduation gap and
 improvement in standardized test scores (e.g., Latinos have shown gains in NAEP
 assessments over the 2000s) indicate that more Hispanic students are academically
 prepared than before. Dropout rates for Hispanics fell from around 32% in 2000 to ~8%
 in 2021, which is a remarkable improvement.
- College Ambition: Surveys find Latino families have high aspirations for education.
 About 90% of Hispanic parents expect their children to go to college, often seeing it as the key to a better life. This has translated into strong enrollment growth, as discussed.
 Also, more Hispanics are applying to and attending competitive universities than before (though still underrepresented in the lvy League and elite institutions).
- Growth of Hispanic-Serving Institutions: There are now over 500 Hispanic-Serving Institutions (HSIs) nationwide (colleges with ≥25% Hispanic enrollment). HSIs (which include many community colleges and public universities in CA, TX, FL, PR, etc.) have been crucial in producing Hispanic graduates, especially in STEM fields. They often have tailored support programs, like bilingual advisors or first-year experience courses, that mitigate some barriers. Notably, among the top 20% of colleges for promoting economic mobility of low-income students, a significant number are HSIs, showing their impact in lifting students into higher income brackets.
- Scholarships and Financial Aid: There's been growth in scholarship funds targeting
 Hispanic students (e.g., through Hispanic Scholarship Fund, LNESC, MALDEF, and
 corporate programs). While not enough to cover all need, these scholarships have
 supported tens of thousands of students. Additionally, the Pell Grant (federal aid for
 low-income students) disproportionately benefits Hispanic students around half of
 Latino undergrads receive Pell Grants. Maintaining and expanding such aid is critical.
- Adult and Continuing Education: Many Hispanic adults who did not finish college
 initially are returning to school later (often in their 30s) through part-time programs,
 online courses, or employer-funded education. This trend, if supported, can help boost
 the credentials and skills of the current Hispanic workforce, directly affecting their
 earning potential. For example, programs like Proyecto Adult College Education
 (PACE) or GED completion initiatives in Spanish have helped older Hispanics get high

school equivalency and some college, enabling better job opportunities.

From a generational wealth perspective, **each additional degree or certificate earned by a Hispanic American can have multiplier effects**. It not only increases that individual's income but also can influence younger relatives (siblings, children) by providing a role model and practical guidance on navigating education. College-educated parents are far more likely to raise college-educated kids, who in turn have higher incomes – that's the core of generational mobility. So, the rise in Hispanic college graduates today sets the stage for a more educated second generation in the 2030s, likely leading to higher family wealth by mid-century.

2.3 Financial Literacy Gaps and Student Debt Impact

Even with strong education credentials, building wealth requires financial know-how and avoiding pitfalls like excessive debt. Unfortunately, **financial literacy remains a challenge** in many Hispanic communities, and the burden of student debt is a growing concern that can hinder wealth accumulation early in one's career.

Financial Literacy: Numerous studies have documented a gap in personal finance knowledge. According to the TIAA Institute's Personal Finance Index and FINRA Foundation surveys, Hispanic adults on average answer fewer financial literacy questions correctly than the U.S. averagetiaa.org. Specifically, only 28% of Hispanics could answer over half of a set of financial questions correctly, compared to 37% of whiteslatinonewsnetwork.com. In 2021, just 24% of Hispanic respondents got 4 out of 5 basic financial questions right, down from 31% a decade earlier finrafoundation.org. These questions cover concepts like interest rates, inflation, mortgage payments, and risk diversification.

Lack of financial literacy can lead to costly decisions: not investing savings (due to lack of understanding of stocks/bonds), falling prey to high-interest loans or scams, misusing credit cards, or not planning for retirement effectively. For example, Hispanics are more likely to use high-cost alternative financial services (like payday lenders or check cashers) – about 34% of Hispanics have used at least one in the past year, versus 21% of whites<u>finrafoundation.orgfinrafoundation.org</u>. These services often charge exorbitant fees that eat away at income. They are often used due to either lack of access to mainstream banking or lack of trust/knowledge of other options.

Encouragingly, surveys show that when financial knowledge increases, behaviors improve markedly. Hispanics with higher financial literacy were found to be twice as likely to have set aside emergency funds and to be investing outside of retirement accounts finrafoundation.org inrafoundation.org. Nearly half (49%) of Hispanics with low financial knowledge had no investments, versus only ~25% of those with high knowledge finrafoundation.org finrafoundation.org. This suggests that expanding financial education could directly translate to more Hispanic households participating in wealth-building activities like owning stocks, mutual funds, or contributing to retirement plans.

Efforts to improve financial literacy include programs by nonprofits and banks targeting Latino communities. For instance, **UnidosUS's Latino Financial Empowerment Initiative** and workshops by the Hispanic Federation aim to teach budgeting, saving, and credit management, often in Spanish or bilingual formats to reach more people. Some high schools in heavily Latino districts have started integrating personal finance into the curriculum as well.

Another promising avenue is **through employers and community organizations**. Churches, community centers, and employers that have many Hispanic workers (like in hospitality or manufacturing) have begun offering financial wellness seminars. There's evidence that culturally tailored programs – that respect values (like sending remittances or communal saving traditions such as tandas) – get better engagement. The goal is to equip the burgeoning Latino middle class with the knowledge to convert income into wealth effectively. By 2029, if financial literacy improves, we might see higher rates of retirement plan participation, more homeownership (as people prepare financially to buy houses), and smarter use of credit in the Hispanic population.

Student Debt: Education, while beneficial, has come with the increasing cost of student loans for many. As more Latinos attend college, more have taken on student debt. The **impact of student loans on young Hispanic adults' finances is significant**. According to a Pew Trust report, *about 22% of Hispanic households carry student loan debt* (including both students and parents who borrowed for children)dfpi.ca.gov.

One alarming statistic: Over the past two decades, **40% of Hispanic student borrowers have defaulted on a student loan** at least oncejbhe.com. This default rate – nearly as high as the 50% rate for Black borrowers – far exceeds the ~29% rate for white borrowersjbhe.com. Defaulting on student loans can be financially devastating: it wrecks one's credit score, can lead to wage garnishment, and often ballooning balances due to fees and interest. The fact that nearly 4 in 10 Latino borrowers ended up in default indicates systemic issues: possibly they did not complete degrees (making repayment harder), they lack family safety nets to help, or they have lower incomes that can't sustain payments.

Even without default, student loan payments reduce the cash flow that young workers have available for saving for a home or retirement. The **average Hispanic bachelor's degree graduate** has slightly less debt than the average white graduate (Hispanic undergrads tend to borrow a bit less, around \$23k vs \$29k for whites, partly because of choosing cheaper schools or living at home)educationdata.org. But because their incomes are also lower on average, the repayment is more burdensome. One measure of that burden: 18% of Latino borrowers report being behind on their student loan payments (prior to the recent payment pause), double the rate of whitesdfpi.ca.gov.

This debt delay's key life milestones: buying a house, starting a business, or even starting a family might be postponed due to student debt. And if parents took Parent PLUS loans to help their children, that can eat into the parents' retirement savings (affecting wealth of the older generation). It is a multi-generational issue.

Policymakers are aware of these disparities. If any student debt relief or forgiveness programs target lower-income borrowers, Hispanic borrowers stand to benefit significantly. Additionally, income-driven repayment plans have been underutilized by many; improving enrollment in these plans can help Hispanic borrowers avoid default by capping payments at a percentage of income.

From a generational wealth perspective, minimizing the negative impact of student debt is crucial. Education should ideally be an asset, not a long-term liability. If by 2029 more Hispanics graduate with manageable or zero debt (through scholarships, grants, free community college initiatives, etc.), they can start building net worth earlier. For those already with debt, financial coaching on repayment and credit repair can mitigate long-term damage.

One positive trend: *Hispanic borrowers have the lowest average monthly student loan payment* among racial groups, about \$250 per month for those with a bachelor's (as they tend to borrow less and attend less pricey schools)<u>educationdata.org</u>. While still a burden, it's somewhat lower than for white or Black grads, which might help slightly. Also, many Hispanic students are savvy in finding alternative paths – e.g., doing two years at a community college then transferring, or working while in school to pay as they go – to limit debt.

In summary, **improving financial literacy and addressing student debt are pivotal for converting educational gains into wealth gains**. Ensuring that the new generation of educated Latinos can make informed financial choices – and isn't weighed down by education loans well into their 30s – will determine how much of their hard-won income can be channeled into wealth-building activities like investing, homeownership, and entrepreneurship.

2.4 Bilingual & Culturally Responsive Education Initiatives

Education is not just about access; it's also about **the quality and relevance of learning experiences**. For Hispanic students, culturally responsive and bilingual education approaches can make a significant difference in academic success, which later translates to economic success. In recent years, there has been a growing movement to implement such approaches in schools with high Latino enrollment, recognizing that **language and cultural identity** are assets rather than obstacles.

Bilingual Education: Many Hispanic students grow up speaking Spanish at home. Research shows that teaching them in both English and Spanish (dual-language programs) can lead to better outcomes than English-only submersion. When Latino students are placed in strong bilingual or dual language programs, they outperform their Latino peers in English-only programs and come closest to closing the achievement gap with other studentsaft.org. The advantage likely comes from allowing students to fully comprehend content in their first language while gradually building academic English skills, rather than falling behind in all subjects due to a language barrier.

In dual immersion programs (where both English speakers and Spanish speakers learn both languages), Latino children not only gain proficiency in English but also maintain and

develop their Spanish literacy, which is a marketable skill in itself (bilingualism is valuable in the job market, especially in healthcare, education, customer service, and international business). These programs also tend to culturally validate students – Spanish is treated as an asset, not something to discard. As a result, students often have higher self-esteem and family engagement in their schooling.

There's been expansion of dual-language programs in many states. For instance, California reinstated bilingual programs after Proposition 58 (2016) overturned the old English-only mandate, and now districts like Los Angeles and San Francisco are growing their Spanish-English dual language offerings. Texas and New York have also increased dual-language classrooms. By 2029, we can expect a higher percentage of Hispanic children to have the opportunity to learn in bilingual settings from early education onward. This is likely to improve high school graduation and college readiness for English Learners, thus increasing the pipeline of college-bound Latino students, which ties back to economic outcomes.

Culturally Responsive Curriculum: Beyond language, culturally responsive teaching means including Latino history, literature, and role models in the curriculum, and using pedagogical methods that respect students' backgrounds. For example, a math problem might reference scenarios familiar to Latino students' lives, or a history class might cover contributions of Latin American and Latino figures, making school more engaging and relevant. This can reduce alienation and increase participation. Teachers trained in cultural competency are better equipped to connect with Hispanic students and their parents, forging trust which leads to better academic support.

Programs like "Latinos in Action" in various states empower Latino high schoolers through culturally relevant leadership classes and peer mentoring. Some school districts host *Latino Parent Nights* in Spanish to involve parents (since parental involvement is crucial for student success). There's evidence that when schools make these efforts, Hispanic student attendance and achievement improves.

One notable statistic: a ThirdWay study found **Hispanic-Serving Institutions and others that intentionally serve Latino students (through targeted programs) have higher success rates** for those students. This indicates that when institutions are deliberate about cultural responsiveness – such as hiring Spanish-speaking staff, celebrating Hispanic Heritage Month meaningfully, providing first-gen student support groups – it tangibly boosts outcomes like retention and graduation.

Teacher Diversity and Training: Having more Hispanic and Spanish-speaking educators in K-12 and higher ed is a goal. Currently, only about 9% of U.S. teachers are Hispanic, versus ~27% of students. Efforts are underway to recruit and train more Latino teachers (including bilingual teachers). States like New Mexico (which is ~50% Hispanic) have invested in **culturally and linguistically responsive teaching** standards for all teachers. As more Latino teachers enter classrooms by 2029, students benefit from role models and teachers who share cultural context.

Cultural Attitudes and Higher Ed: On the higher education front, making campuses culturally inclusive can help Latino college students thrive and complete degrees, which is essential for them to realize the economic benefit of education. This includes offering Latino studies courses, supporting Latino student associations, and events that acknowledge diverse traditions. At many universities, first-generation Latino students report feeling imposter syndrome or family pressure (like guilt for leaving home). Culturally responsive support services (e.g., bilingual counseling, mentorship by Latino faculty or alumni, family-inclusive orientation sessions) can alleviate these pressures. Some colleges have implemented "summer bridge" programs aimed at first-gen students of color to help them acclimate.

Why does all this matter for generational wealth? Because **educational attainment and quality is cumulative and intergenerational**. A child who is well-educated and feels empowered in school is more likely to finish high school, go to college, and secure a good job – enabling them to support their parents and invest in their own children's education in the future. Conversely, if cultural or language barriers cause a student to disengage or drop out, that perpetuates a cycle of lower earnings and limited wealth.

Culturally responsive education also contributes to **financial literacy indirectly**. Students who see practical and relatable content (e.g., learning math through real-life scenarios, including managing a budget) and who aren't left behind due to language issues may graduate with better practical skills. There are even programs where financial concepts are taught in high school economics classes in Spanish for English Learners, ensuring they grasp it fully – which can only help later when making financial decisions.

In sum, bridging educational gaps through bilingual and culturally attuned strategies enhances the human capital of the Hispanic community. By 2029, we aim to have more Hispanic youths not only graduating, but doing so with strong skills and a sense of cultural pride that propels them to aim high. This will translate into a more skilled workforce, higher incomes, and a greater capacity to generate and maintain wealth within Hispanic families. Education is the great equalizer – and making it work well for Latinos is one of the surest long-term strategies for closing wealth gaps in America.

3. Emerging Technology: Catalyzing Wealth-Building

As we move further into the 21st century, technology stands out as a game-changer for financial inclusion and wealth generation. For the U.S. Hispanic community – many of whom have historically faced barriers in the traditional financial system – emerging technologies offer new pathways to access credit, save and invest, start businesses, and acquire valuable skills. This section explores how **digital transformation**, **fintech**, **artificial intelligence** (AI), and **blockchain** are impacting Hispanic communities' wealth-building prospects. It also examines generational differences in digital fluency and how businesses can leverage technology to better serve and empower Hispanic consumers and entrepreneurs.

3.1 Digital Inclusion and Fintech Adoption in Hispanic Communities

One of the most striking trends is that **Hispanic Americans are leading adopters of financial technology (fintech)**. Fintech is a broad term covering mobile banking apps, online lending platforms, digital payment services, robo-advisors, cryptocurrency exchanges, and more. The high rate of adoption among Hispanics is driven by a combination of need and demographics – many Hispanics were underserved by brick-and-mortar banks, and the population is relatively young and tech-savvy.

According to a Brookings analysis, **92% of U.S. Latinos reported using at least one fintech tool or service** (such as mobile banking apps, digital wallets like PayPal/Venmo, or online money transfers). This usage rate is the highest of any racial/ethnic group; by comparison, about 74% of white consumers and 79% of Asian consumers use fintech, and 88% of Black consumers do. Essentially, Hispanics have leapfrogged to fintech solutions more quickly – an indication that these products meet certain unmet needs.

Why such high fintech use? Several reasons stand out:

- Mobile-First Access: As noted earlier, a significant share of Hispanics are
 "smartphone-only" internet users (25%). For those without easy access to a bank branch
 or who may not have a home computer, smartphones become the portal to financial
 services. Fintech apps are often mobile-centric, which aligns with Hispanic connectivity
 patterns. Many fintechs also offer Spanish-language interfaces or customer support,
 which traditional banks have sometimes lacked.
- Historically Underbanked: Hispanic households have higher unbanked/underbanked rates. About 8.4% of Hispanic households with moderate incomes are unbanked vs 1.7% of comparable white households. Fintech companies spotted this gap and created solutions: for example, digital banking apps that don't require minimum balances (addressing the "not enough money for minimum" issue that 21% of unbanked Hispanics cite), or services that accept alternative IDs (for those without Social Security numbers). Fintech can reduce barriers like mistrust or inconvenient branch hours a notable 13% of unbanked Hispanics cited distrust of banks as a reason. Some fintech marketing directly tackles this by emphasizing transparency and low fees.
- Lower Costs and Fees: Traditional financial services often carried higher fees that deterred low-income users (e.g., high checking account fees, overdraft charges). Fintech alternatives like no-fee banking or free person-to-person transfers are very attractive. For instance, apps like Cash App or Zelle allow free transfers which might replace pricey wire transfers or check cashing fees that immigrants used to pay. Fintech proponents argue these innovations bolster financial inclusion by lowering costs and offering fractional services (like being able to invest with \$5 via micro-investing apps).
- Remittances and Cross-Border Needs: Many Hispanic immigrants send money to family abroad. Fintech and blockchain-based services (like Bitso, Ripple, or simply digital remittance apps like Remitly) have made sending money internationally faster and cheaper than traditional methods. Hispanic consumers have been quick to adopt these,

saving on fees and bringing more of their financial activity into formal channels.

• Community and Social Networks: The ubiquity of social media and messaging apps among Hispanic youth helps spread fintech adoption. For example, someone might learn about a new investment app through a WhatsApp group of friends or see a Spanish-language YouTube explainer about crypto. This viral effect has led to high uptake of certain fintech trends in Latino communities (like a surge in interest in cryptocurrency around 2020–2021, where surveys found Hispanics were more likely to own crypto than whites – about 31% of Hispanics under 50 had dabbled in crypto vs 17% of whites).

While fintech adoption is high, it's critical to assess its impact. **Does fintech use translate into better financial health for Hispanics?** The potential is certainly there:

- Fintech can help previously unbanked individuals to **build credit histories** (e.g., rent reporting apps or secured credit builder cards accessible via mobile), which then unlocks cheaper loans and credit lines.
- It can facilitate **saving and investing** through automation and low-friction platforms. For example, apps like Acorns or Stash have noted popularity among younger minorities, letting them invest spare change. If large numbers of Hispanic millennials start investing earlier via such platforms, that could narrow the wealth gap over time.
- Fintech also supports **small business owners**: Latino entrepreneurs who may have been denied loans by banks are finding success borrowing from online small-business lenders or raising capital via crowdfunding. This directly enables business formation and expansion key sources of wealth.

However, there are caveats. The Brookings report warns of a **data scarcity** on outcomes: we know Latinos use fintech a lot, but we need more data on *how it's impacting their financial status*. There's also the risk that fintech could **perpetuate some disparities** if not designed carefully – for instance, algorithmic bias in digital lending could still discriminate if based on biased data, or predatory actors might exploit trust (some unregulated crypto schemes targeting minority communities have been flagged).

Policymakers and consumer advocates stress the need for **education and safeguards**. Already, about 13% of Hispanics cite lack of trust as a reason for not using banks, and trust can be an issue for fintech too. News of scams or data breaches could hinder adoption if people feel their money isn't safe. So far, Latinos appear confident enough to try these tools, but sustained use will depend on positive experiences.

Overall, by 2029, fintech could play a central role in closing certain financial service gaps for Hispanics. If, for example, the proportion of unbanked Latino households falls dramatically

thanks to mobile banking, that's a win – those households can then more easily save securely, earn interest, and access credit. If more Latino families adopt robo-advisors for retirement planning, they might accumulate larger nest eggs. The ultimate promise is **greater financial inclusion**: bringing everyone into the mainstream economy with appropriate accounts, credit, and investment opportunities. Fintech is not a panacea, but it is a powerful tool that the Hispanic community is leveraging to gain financial footing.

3.2 Mobile-First Banking and Access to Financial Tools

As noted, **mobile-first banking** is particularly important for the Hispanic demographic. Many fintech services essentially turn a smartphone into a bank branch. Even established banks have realized they must adapt to this trend: several major banks have launched Spanish-language mobile apps or partnered with Hispanic outreach initiatives to improve digital banking enrollment.

One important aspect is that mobile banking can help overcome **geographic and psychological barriers**. In some immigrant-heavy neighborhoods, there may have been mistrust of banks (due to language issues or fear of immigration status questions). But a well-designed app with Spanish text and straightforward UX can bring those people on board. We see this with second-generation Hispanics helping their parents set up digital accounts – it's easier than dragging them into a bank, and fees are often lower.

Mobile banking also facilitates **remittances and peer-to-peer payments** which are lifelines for many families. The integration of services like Zelle into banking apps, or offerings like **Paypal's Xoom** for international remittances, means people don't have to visit money transfer stores and pay high fees. The World Bank reports that remittance fees have declined partly due to digital disruptors, saving Hispanics (and others) billions that can instead circulate as savings or local spending.

Another key tool is **mobile credit and lending**. There are apps now that allow quick small loans or paycheck advances with transparent terms. For example, Oportun and Aura are lenders that have catered to Latino borrowers with limited credit history, often using alternative data to underwrite and offering bilingual customer service. By 2029, as more lenders use AI and machine learning, we could see even more tailored credit products for those who historically lacked access. This can help families handle emergencies without resorting to predatory payday loans, thereby avoiding debt traps that impede wealth building.

Savings and Investment via Mobile: A trend among younger Hispanics is using apps to save and invest in a fun, game-like way. Some community organizations have partnered with fintechs to introduce these apps in financial literacy classes. For example, an app that visualizes saving progress for a goal (like Down Payment Saver or Goalsetter) can resonate with family-oriented savers. **Micro-investing apps** have reported higher uptake by minority millennials; they allow starting with very little money which suits first-time investors. If by 2029 a significant share of Hispanic 20-somethings have investment accounts (even small ones) because apps made it accessible, that could mark a generational shift – historically, stock market participation was

much lower for Hispanics (only about one-quarter of Hispanic households own stocks, vs majority of white households). More participation means more chance to benefit from market gains over the long term.

One inspiring example: during the pandemic, many Americans started investing in stocks/crypto. Surveys found **Latinos and Blacks joined the retail investing boom in higher proportions** than before, partly via Robinhood and Coinbase. While not all outcomes were positive (some lost money due to volatility), this increased familiarity with markets is a step toward breaking down the "investing gap."

It's also worth mentioning **blockchain and cryptocurrency** in a Hispanic context. Hispanic interest in crypto has been relatively high – in a 2022 survey, 25% of Hispanics said they had ever owned cryptocurrency, compared to 15% of whites. Motives included hoping for high returns, and using crypto for cross-border payments. Crypto remains risky and is not a proven wealth-builder for most (with big boom and bust cycles), but the underlying blockchain tech might bring benefits in things like reducing remittance costs or enabling digital property records. Some Latin American countries (like El Salvador with Bitcoin, or Colombia exploring land registries on blockchain) are in this space, so U.S. Hispanics with ties to those places keep a close eye. By 2029, whether crypto becomes mainstream or not, the focus likely will shift to how blockchain can improve financial products (e.g., smart contracts for cheaper loans, decentralized finance options). If safely integrated, these could provide more alternatives for borrowing or investing for communities that didn't have traditional access.

The **bottom line** for mobile-first tools: they are accelerating financial inclusion. Yet, one must caution: digital divide issues persist – about 9% of Hispanics have no internet access. It tends to be older or rural individuals. Ensuring everyone can access mobile banking requires closing gaps in digital access and literacy for some elders. Families often help elders use apps (for instance, an adult child might manage an immigrant parent's banking via a shared app). Community centers offering digital literacy in Spanish can also help older folks benefit from these innovations.

For business leaders, the takeaway is that **Hispanic consumers expect robust mobile services**. Whether you're a bank, an insurance company, or a retail business, to engage this demographic you need user-friendly mobile platforms, Spanish language options, and trust-building security features. Companies like Wells Fargo and Bank of America have learned to tailor products (like sign-up bonuses for remittances or special mortgages for ITIN holders) and heavily market them via digital channels to Latinos. Fintech startups founded by Latinos (like Camino Financial, Finhabits, etc.) explicitly target their community's needs; incumbents will need to match that understanding or collaborate with these startups.

In summary, mobile-first banking and fintech tools have already begun to democratize access to financial services for Hispanics. By 2029, we anticipate a financial landscape where far more Hispanic households have checking, savings, and investment accounts (even if modest in size), obtained through their phones. That's a critical infrastructural piece for generational wealth – you can't save or invest if you're outside the system. Now increasingly, Hispanic Americans are

"inside," using the latest tech to manage their money often more intensively than average Americans.

3.3 Al, Blockchain, and the Future of Hispanic Entrepreneurship

Emerging technologies like artificial intelligence (AI) and blockchain are set to reshape entire industries. For the Hispanic community – particularly entrepreneurs and the younger workforce – these technologies offer both **opportunities for leapfrogging into new markets and challenges related to job displacement** or skill gaps.

Artificial Intelligence and Latino Participation: Al is becoming ubiquitous, from virtual assistants to predictive analytics in business. Currently, Latinos are underrepresented in Al development roles (less than 10% of technical Al roles are filled by Latinos, even though they're 19% of the population). This underrepresentation is an issue, as diverse input is needed to prevent biases in Al systems and ensure solutions address a broad range of communities. However, usage data suggests that Latinos are avid users of Al tools. A 2024 LDC report found that Latino youth surpass their white peers in using Al for various purposes: e.g., 54% of Latino youth have used Al for information gathering vs 41% of white youth, 39% vs 24% for creating images, and 27% vs 7% for making music. This indicates an enthusiasm and comfort with Al-driven creativity and problem-solving among the young Hispanic cohort, which could translate into future career skills or entrepreneurial ventures.

On the business side, **Latino-owned firms are adopting AI at notable rates**. The same report showed *14% of scaled Latino-owned businesses use AI in operations vs 7% of scaled white-owned businesses*. "Scaled" here refers to businesses beyond the startup stage, likely in growth mode. So, despite smaller average business size, Latinos seem eager to integrate tech like AI to gain efficiency or competitive edge. This might be because many Latino businesses are in competitive industries (retail, food, logistics) where AI can help streamline supply chains, marketing, or customer service. Also, younger owners (skewing more Latino as entrepreneurship trends show) might be more open to tech experimentation.

By 2029, Al could significantly impact employment in sectors where Hispanics are a large share of workers, such as manufacturing, agriculture, or service jobs. Automation might threaten some low-skill jobs, but it can also augment jobs or create new roles (like Al maintenance, data labeling, etc.). For generational wealth, the key will be **upskilling** the Latino workforce so they can move into the higher-value jobs that Al will generate, rather than being displaced. This is where education and training programs are crucial – for instance, community colleges offering Al certification programs in Spanish or companies investing in retraining. If done right, Hispanic workers could leverage Al as a tool to increase productivity (and wages) in their roles. Already, something like using Al-driven translation (e.g., customer service reps using Al to assist bilingual communication) can make Hispanic workers more valuable.

From an entrepreneurial perspective, **Al lowers barriers to entry** in some fields: you don't need a huge staff to handle tasks if you can automate customer inquiries or analyze data with Al. This could make it easier for small Latino-owned startups to compete with bigger firms. Also,

niche markets can be served at scale via AI – e.g., a Latino entrepreneur might create an AI-powered app that provides culturally relevant financial advice, filling a gap mainstream products overlooked. There are examples emerging: fintech startups using AI to underwrite loans for thin-credit-file customers (common among immigrant populations) or ed-tech using AI tutors for English learners.

Blockchain and Financial Inclusion: Blockchain technology (the backbone of cryptocurrencies) promises decentralized, transparent, and secure record-keeping. How might this benefit Hispanic wealth-building? One area is in **remittances and cross-border finance**, as mentioned – crypto and blockchain-based remittance networks can cut costs and time, meaning families receive more of the money sent. Another is **smart contracts** that could simplify processes like buying a house or a car by automating trust. For instance, title registry on blockchain could prevent fraud and make property transfer cheaper; this might encourage more homebuying if closing costs drop.

In Latin America, interest in blockchain is high due to unstable currencies and institutions. U.S. Hispanics with ties to those regions might be more comfortable with blockchain solutions. Additionally, **Latino entrepreneurs are active in the blockchain space** – there are initiatives like Hispanics in Blockchain and a growing community of Latino crypto investors. By 2029, if blockchain applications (beyond currency) become mainstream, Hispanics can benefit by virtue of early familiarity (but this is speculative; blockchain's killer apps beyond crypto trading are still developing).

Ensuring Diversity in Tech: To truly harness AI and blockchain for Hispanic prosperity, representation matters. Tech companies and startups need more Latino talent shaping these technologies. There are efforts such as tech bootcamps (e.g., Sabio in LA, which focuses on training Latinos in coding) and organizations like TechEd Latino aiming to get more youth into STEM. The LDC's Latino Tech Report highlights such trends: e.g., Latinos in technical AI roles grew by ~49% from 2018 to 2022, which is encouraging momentum. By bridging the gap into tech careers, Latinos not only secure high-paying jobs (with stock options that can be wealth windfalls), but they also ensure the solutions being built consider their communities. For example, a Latino software engineer might better understand how to design a banking app for Spanish-preferring users, or catch biases in a lending algorithm that could inadvertently disadvantage immigrants.

In terms of policy, supporting minority-owned tech startups via incubators or venture capital funds can create wealth in the community. Currently, Latino founders receive only a tiny fraction (<2%) of VC funding. Changing that by 2029 – even to be proportionate with population (~19%) – could generate a boom in Latino tech entrepreneurship. These entrepreneurs, if successful, become job creators and philanthropic leaders in their communities, fueling a virtuous cycle of generational wealth (similar to how many successful immigrant entrepreneurs later fund scholarships or invest in their communities).

To encapsulate, **emerging technologies present a double-edged sword**: they can exacerbate inequalities if access is uneven, or they can reduce inequalities by offering new tools to

historically marginalized groups. For U.S. Hispanics, the early signs point to a proactive embrace of tech. The task ahead is to sustain that by ensuring equitable access to tech education, capital, and infrastructure (like broadband). If done, we could see a future where a thriving Latino tech sector contributes robustly to wealth creation, and where AI and blockchain solutions specifically help close gaps (like making credit more available, transactions cheaper, and skills more attainable).

3.4 Generational Digital Fluency and Tech Adoption Patterns

The concept of **digital fluency** – the ability to use digital tools easily and effectively – varies across generations. Within the Hispanic community, as in others, younger generations (Gen Z, Millennials) are generally far more digitally fluent than older generations (Gen X, Boomers). However, there are nuances given language and immigration factors, and bridging this gap is important so that older Hispanics are not left behind in the digital economy.

Young, Connected, and Entrepreneurial: Hispanic Gen Z and Millennials have grown up with the internet and smartphones. They stream content, socialize on media, and use apps for everything from shopping to banking. Many are bilingual digitally – they consume content in both English and Spanish, expanding their information sources. This cohort is driving the high fintech usage stats cited earlier and is likely to be the one trying out new tech first (like the early adopters of new social media platforms or gadgets). Their comfort with tech can translate to more side hustles or entrepreneurial activities; for example, a young Latino might start an e-commerce store on Instagram or sell crafts on Etsy, leveraging online marketplaces to supplement income or launch a business with low overhead.

A **2024 marketing survey** noted that Hispanic Millennials over-index in using social media to find new investment opportunities and to educate themselves about personal finance. They often learn peer-to-peer online, sharing tips about crypto or real estate crowdfunding. While peer advice can be hit-or-miss, it does mean they're actively seeking knowledge, which is a positive for building wealth (assuming they discern good advice).

Older Generation Catching Up: Many older Hispanics (particularly first-generation immigrants) initially had limited engagement with tech, but this is changing out of necessity and through intergenerational help. During the COVID-19 pandemic, for instance, a lot of older people learned to use video calls to talk to family, or had to use online services for health appointments or church. Hispanic families often live in multi-generational households, so children and grandchildren can directly assist grandparents with technology. This dynamic helps bring some older folks into the digital fold – for example, setting up a WhatsApp on abuela's phone so she can communicate cheaply with relatives abroad.

Still, **gaps remain**. Only about 61% of Latinos age 50+ owned a smartphone as of a few years ago, versus 73% of all older Americans. So older Latinos might miss out on the fintech revolution or telehealth if they're not connected. Addressing affordability of devices and data plans, as well as providing digital literacy training in Spanish, is key to closing this gap. Libraries and senior centers in Latino communities have started hosting digital skills workshops (e.g., how

to use online banking safely, how to spot scams). Over time, the gap is naturally narrowing because today's middle-aged Latinos are more tech-savvy than those of prior generations.

Generational Tech Preferences: Younger Hispanics may adopt tech en masse but might lack deep financial knowledge, whereas older ones might have traditional financial wisdom (like frugality or preference for tangible assets like real estate) but not know how to use new tools. Bridging generational knowledge could be powerful: imagine a scenario where a tech-fluent daughter helps her Spanish-dominant mom invest through an app, combining the daughter's ease with tech and the mother's savings discipline. These cross-generational collaborations can accelerate wealth-building – indeed, studies on financial behavior show that involving the whole family (parents and kids) in financial planning yields better results in minority communities.

Also, a point on **media and information**: Younger generations consume news and financial info via YouTube, podcasts, TikTok. There's a burgeoning space of Latino personal finance influencers creating content in English and Spanish. They demystify investing or home-buying in a culturally relevant way (for instance, explaining 401(k)s by likening them to familiar concepts, or addressing Latino-specific money issues like sending money to family). These influencers often reach younger viewers but can also be a bridge to older ones if shared within families. By 2029, this ecosystem of content will likely grow, meaning more accessible financial education for all ages via digital channels.

Telework and Tech Jobs: A post-pandemic development is the normalization of remote work and gig work through platforms (Uber, Upwork, etc.). Hispanics historically were less represented in jobs that could be done remotely (due to concentration in in-person service jobs). But with broadened opportunities and perhaps with new tech skills, more Latinos might enter jobs in coding, digital design, or remote customer service. This flexibility can have wealth implications: remote work often comes with cost savings (no commute) and sometimes the ability to live in lower-cost areas while earning big-city salaries. It also allows parents to balance family duties better, which is valuable in Hispanic households with often both parents working. The caveat is that to access these jobs, tech skills and broadband access are needed; thus, community programs to train workers for tech jobs (like IT support, digital marketing) are critical.

Community Tech Hubs: One interesting trend is the growth of tech hubs and incubators in Latino-majority areas. Miami, for example, with its large Latino population, is emerging as a tech hub and hosts the annual eMerge Americas conference spotlighting Latin American and US Hispanic innovation. The idea is to create supportive environments where young Latino techies can start companies and find mentors. This environment fosters networks that are crucial for success – knowing other tech entrepreneurs, getting advice on raising capital, etc. If places like Miami, Los Angeles, or San Antonio manage to create vibrant Latino tech scenes by 2029, it will help keep talent in the community and recycle wealth within it (successful founders investing in the next generation).

In summary, digital fluency is increasingly a hallmark of younger Hispanics, and a necessary skill for older ones to adopt to fully partake in economic opportunities. Bridging generational tech gaps through family support, targeted training, and inclusive design of tech

products (like making sure apps are intuitive and multilingual) will maximize the benefit of technology for generational wealth. When a grandfather can use a tablet to manage his small business finances, or a young professional can use an Al-based advisor to plan early retirement, it all contributes to wealth preservation and growth in the community.

Looking holistically at emerging tech, the picture for 2029 is one where **technology is an enabler**: enabling access to financial systems (fintech), enabling new forms of earning (remote/gig economy, entrepreneurship), and enabling the Hispanic community's voice and needs to be represented in products (through diverse tech leadership). The challenge will be ensuring equitable access to these tools and mitigating risks (like predatory online schemes or widening disparities for those left offline). With proactive efforts by both public and private sectors, technology can indeed be a great equalizer for generational wealth in the Hispanic market.

4. Conclusion and Recommendations: Preparing for 2029

The trajectory of the U.S. Hispanic market between now and 2029 is clear: **it will be larger**, **younger**, **better educated**, **and more technologically empowered** than ever before. This poses both an opportunity and an imperative for business leaders across all sectors. The opportunity is to harness the dynamism of this growing segment – as employees, consumers, and innovators – to drive business growth and innovation. The imperative is to address the structural challenges that have historically limited Hispanic generational wealth so that this growth is sustainable and inclusive.

Key themes recapped: Demographically, Hispanics will dominate labor force growth and new household formation in the coming years. Generational shifts mean a younger Latino cohort is stepping into economic primacy as an older white cohort retirespewresearch.org. Educationally, while gaps remain, Hispanics are reaching higher attainment levels, which will pay off in productivity and earnings. Technologically, Latinos are early adopters and creative users, pointing to a future where digital solutions play a central role in financial inclusion. However, gaps in wealth – largely products of history and unequal inheritances – will not disappear overnight. It will take intentional effort to ensure that rising incomes translate into wealth that endures across generations.

For business leaders and policymakers looking toward 2029, here are **strategic recommendations** informed by our research:

• Embrace Cultural Intelligence: U.S. Hispanics are not a monolith; they span various national origins, generations, and preferences. Invest in understanding cultural nuances and regional differences within the Hispanic market. This could mean tailored marketing (e.g., bilingual advertising or in-culture content), offering products that resonate with Hispanic values (such as family-centered financial planning tools), or simply ensuring your customer experience is welcoming (staff that speak Spanish, etc.). Culturally intelligent companies will earn the trust and loyalty of Hispanic consumers – a trust that,

once earned, often extends to families and communities via word-of-mouth. As the Hispanic share of consumers grows, this is not just niche marketing but mainstream strategy.

- Build Pathways for Hispanic Talent: Given the crucial role of Hispanics in the future workforce, companies should proactively create pipelines for Hispanic recruitment, retention, and advancement. Partner with HSIs and Latino professional organizations to recruit graduates. Implement mentorship and sponsorship programs to help Hispanic employees advance to leadership (addressing the representation gap at executive levels). Culturally relevant professional development (understanding that some may be first in their family in corporate roles) can help. Companies that reflect the diversity of their customers in their workforce will be more attuned to market needs and more innovative. Moreover, providing good jobs and career progression for Hispanic employees directly contributes to closing income and wealth gaps.
- Support Financial Inclusion Initiatives: Financial institutions in particular should double-down on inclusion. This includes offering affordable products for those new to banking (e.g., low-fee accounts, credit-building loans), expanding services in Latino neighborhoods (perhaps through fintech partnerships or community-based marketing), and investing in financial literacy programs. Business leaders in banking, fintech, and insurance can collaborate with nonprofits like UnidosUS, LULAC, or local community groups to reach unbanked families and bring them into the financial mainstream. There is a business case (a huge untapped market) and a social good aspect (empowering communities). Consider by 2029 setting measurable goals: e.g., "We will enable 1 million more Hispanic households to become homeowners" or "We will increase Hispanic retirement account ownership by X% through targeted initiatives."
- Leverage Technology to Serve, Not Exploit: Tech companies and service providers must ensure that their solutions serve the Hispanic community's needs ethically. Al algorithms in lending, hiring, or housing should be audited for bias that could inadvertently perpetuate discrimination. Cybersecurity and fraud protection should be top-of-mind, as new adopters of digital finance (like many first-time banking app users) could be vulnerable to scams. On the flip side, positive use of Al could include Spanish-language Al chatbots for customer service or Al-driven personalized financial coaching for Hispanic customers using tech to enhance access and satisfaction. Blockchain-based innovations might be leveraged for secure cross-border transactions or to validate credentials of foreign-born professionals (making it easier for immigrant doctors or engineers to get certified, for instance). Business leaders in tech should include Hispanic voices in design and decision-making so products are built with cultural context.
- Promote Education and Upskilling: The link between education and wealth means business leaders have a stake in supporting educational progress. Companies can offer scholarships or internships to Hispanic students in fields where they are

underrepresented (like STEM, finance). Join or sponsor programs that aim to reduce dropout rates or improve college completion for Latinos. Within your workforce, provide upskilling opportunities (for example, digital skills training for employees whose jobs might be automated, grooming them for new roles). A workforce development approach that anticipates changes from technology (Al automation, etc.) and helps employees adapt will particularly benefit demographics like Hispanics who are heavily represented in some vulnerable job categories. It's both a social responsibility and a way to ensure you have the skilled labor needed for the future.

- Foster Hispanic Entrepreneurship: Latino-owned businesses are booming in numbermckinsey.com, but they often remain small due to challenges scaling such as limited access to capital and networksmckinsey.com. Corporations and investors should look to integrate Latino entrepreneurs into supply chains and funding pipelines. This might mean allocating a percentage of procurement to minority-owned businesses (which helps them grow revenues), or mentoring start-ups via accelerators (several now focus on Latino founders). Banks can tailor small business lending programs to Hispanic micro-entrepreneurs, perhaps considering alternative credit data to underwrite loans for those who lack traditional credit. By 2029, the goal could be to significantly raise the average size and longevity of Latino SMEs, contributing to wealth creation for business owners and job creation for the community.
- Monitor and Measure Progress: It's often said "what gets measured, gets done." Business and civic leaders should track metrics around Hispanic economic inclusion and generational wealth whether it's homeownership rates, retirement savings levels, or representation in leadership. The data from sources like Pew, the Federal Reserve, and LDC in this report provide a baseline. Continue to commission research and listen to the community's feedback. Celebrate improvements (e.g., narrowing wealth gaps, rising graduation rates) and pinpoint areas needing more work (e.g., persistent wage gaps or digital divides). Setting public targets (like those mentioned in the 2024 L'ATTITUDE conference: Latino GDP growth, workforce participation, etc.) can galvanize cross-sector collaboration to achieve them.

In conclusion, preparing for the future of generational wealth in the U.S. Hispanic market is not just a "Hispanic issue" – it is an American economic imperative. Hispanic Americans are and will be a cornerstone of the nation's labor force, consumer base, and entrepreneurial engine. Their success in building wealth and financial security will deeply influence the broader U.S. economy's health and growth. As this white paper has outlined, there are strong winds at our backs: favorable demographics, improving education, and rapid tech adoption. By addressing the remaining barriers through thoughtful action today, business leaders can ensure these winds fill the sails of millions of Hispanic families' aspirations.

The vision for 2029 and beyond is of an America where a young Latino professional can purchase a home and start investing early because she had access to education and fair credit; where a Hispanic-owned tech startup can scale and go public, creating wealth for its founders

and community; where an immigrant father and his U.S.-born son can both navigate the financial system confidently, albeit one in Spanish and one in English, and set up a successful family business; and where the term "wealth gap" is fading from discussion because parity is closer to being achieved. Achieving this vision requires commitment now – but the returns, economic and social, will be well worth it.

Appendices

Appendix A: Data Tables and Charts

Table A1. U.S. Median Household Wealth by Race/Ethnicity (2019 & 2021)

Group	Median Wealth 2019	Median Wealth 2021	% Change 2019–21
White (non-Hispanic)	\$203,200	\$250,400	+23%
Hispanic (any race)	\$34,400	\$48,700	+42%
Black (non-Hispanic)	\$15,300	\$27,100	+77%
Asian (non-Hispanic)	\$224,000	\$320,900	+43%
Multiracial (NH)	\$48,600	\$82,500	+70%

Source: Pew Research Center analysis of Survey of Consumer Finances. Figures in 2021 dollars. Hispanic median wealth, while growing 42%, remains about 19% of white median wealth.

Table A2. Educational Attainment of Hispanic Population (Selected Indicators)

Indicator	Year 2000	Year 2021/22	Notes/Source
% Hispanics age 25-29 with High School diploma	64% (2000)	88% (2022)	Dramatic improvement.
% Hispanics age 25-29 with Bachelor's degree	10% (2000)	20% (2017)	U.Sborn: 20%; Foreign-born: 12%.
Total Hispanic college enrollment (millions)	1.5 (2000)	3.8 (2019)	Record high in 2019.

% of U.S. college students who are Hispanic	12% (2000)	20% (2021)	Growing share.
Hispanic HS dropout rate	21% (2000)	8% (2021)	Ages 16-24, major decline (NCES data).
% Hispanic adults (25+) with Bachelor's or higher	11% (2000)	14.5% (2022)	Lowest among groups.
% Hispanic undergrads who are first-generation	_	70%+	~70% are first-gen college students <u>unidosus.org</u> .

Table A3. Hispanic Financial Inclusion and Fintech Usage

Metric	Hispanics	Whites	Source/Note
Unbanked households (income \$30-50k)	8.4%	1.7%	FDIC survey.
Have credit card (2019)	47%	66%	Federal Reserve data (SHED).
Use fintech (any type of financial app/service)	92%	74%	Plaid survey via Brookings.
Use mobile banking as primary access	53% of banked Hispanics	38% of banked Whites	Est. from Pew & FDIC data.
Households owning crypto (2022)	21%	11%	Morning Consult/Pew (approx).
Received an inheritance (ever)	5% (2019 SCF)	26% (2019 SCF)	NCRC – significant gap.
Median student loan debt (bachelor's grads)	~\$20,500	~\$25,000	Edu. Data Initiative <u>educationdata.org</u> .
Default rate on student loans (last 20 yrs)	40%	29%	Pew Trustsjbhe.com.

Figure A1. U.S. Population Age Pyramid by Race (2018) – [See Figure 1 in report] Shows youthful distribution for Hispanics vs older distribution for whitespewresearch.org.

Figure A2. Median Wealth by Race/Ethnicity (2021) – [See Figure 1 in report] White median wealth ~5.1× Hispanic median wealth.

Figure A3. Bachelor's Degree Attainment by Race/Ethnicity (2022) – [See Figure 2 in report] Hispanics at 14.5% vs 26.1% for whites.

Appendix B: Glossary of Terms

- Generational Wealth: Assets (property, investments, savings) passed from one generation of a family to the next. Building generational wealth implies accumulating resources that outlast one's lifetime to benefit descendants.
- Hispanic/Latino: Used interchangeably here to refer to people in the U.S. of Spanish-speaking Latin American or Spanish heritage. Pew defines Hispanic as anyone of those origins, regardless of race. (Note: "Latinx" is used by some, especially younger people, but only 4% of U.S. Hispanics use itpewresearch.org, so we use the more common terms.)
- **Fintech (Financial Technology):** Innovative digital applications and services in finance including mobile banking, digital payments, peer-to-peer lending, robo-advisors for investing, and cryptocurrencies. These often aim to be more user-friendly and accessible than traditional banking.
- **Underbanked/Unbanked:** Unbanked refers to households with no bank account at all. Underbanked refers to those who have an account but still rely on alternative financial services (money orders, payday loans, etc.).
- Dual Language/Bilingual Education: Educational programs where instruction is given in two languages (e.g., English and Spanish) with the goal of students becoming proficient in both. For Hispanic students, strong bilingual programs have shown to improve academic outcomesaft.org.
- HSI (Hispanic-Serving Institution): An accredited college/university with 25% or more full-time undergraduate Hispanic enrollment. These institutions often receive federal grants to enhance support for Hispanic students.
- Digital Divide: The gap between those who have ready access to computers and internet (and the skills to use them) and those who do not. For Hispanics, the digital divide often refers to lower home broadband adoption and higher smartphone-only use compared to whites.
- Al (Artificial Intelligence): In this context, algorithms and machine learning systems that perform tasks like decision-making, prediction, or content generation. All is used in chatbots, personalized recommendations, credit scoring, etc. Latino adoption of All tools is high among youth, but representation in All development is low.

- **Blockchain:** A distributed ledger technology that underpins cryptocurrencies like Bitcoin. It provides a secure, decentralized way to record transactions. It has potential applications in remittances, smart contracts, and more that could benefit financial inclusion.
- Entrepreneurship (Latino context): The rate at which Latinos start businesses is high

 Latinos are 36% of new entrepreneursmckinsey.com.
 Key challenges include access to capital and scaling beyond sole proprietorship. Supporting Latino entrepreneurship is seen as key to wealth-building.
- Purchasing Power: The total disposable income of a group. Hispanic purchasing power
 of \$3.8 trillion means if U.S. Hispanics were an independent market, they would be one
 of the world's top economies in consumer spending.
- **Wealth Gap:** The disparity in median or mean wealth between different groups. In the U.S., the racial wealth gap refers to whites having significantly higher wealth than Blacks and Hispanics. Closing the wealth gap involves addressing inequalities in income, homeownership, inheritance, and investment access.
- **First-Generation College Student:** A student who is the first in their immediate family to attend college. ~70% of Hispanic college students fall into this category<u>unidosus.org</u>, which is why specialized support (mentoring, financial aid guidance) is important.

Sources: This white paper drew on recent (2023–2025) research and data from Pew Research Center, U.S. Census Bureau, McKinsey & Company, Brookings Institution, UnidosUS, LDC, NCRC, the Federal Reserve, and other trusted sources as cited in-text. Key references include Pew's reports on wealth disparities and Latino demographicspewresearch.org, the LDC Latino GDP Report™ 2024, NCRC's Racial Wealth Snapshot on Latinos, UnidosUS fact reports, and Brookings analyses on fintech adoption. All citations follow the format 【source†lines】 linking to the original research.